New College Council
Meeting of Monday, September 22, 2025, 12:10 p.m. - 2:00 p.m.
AGENDA:
1. Minutes of the Meeting of April 7, 2025 (attached)

2. Business Arising from the Minutes
i. Report from the New College Writing Centre Subcommittee

3. Welcome from the Principal

4. Report from the Striking Committee
i. Election of the Chair

5. Report from Student Councils
i. NCSC

ii. NCRC
iii. Course Unions

6. Report from Standing Committees.

7. Report of the Principal - R. Gazzale
i. Council Structure Review

8. Report of the Vice Principal - A. Guerson

9. Report of the Chief Administrative Officer - R. Vander Kraats

10. Report from the Registrar’s Office - K. Huffman

11. Report from the Office of Residence and Student Life - L. McCormack-Smith
12. Report from the Writing Centre - M. Prescott-Brown

13. Report from the Librarian - J. Newman

14. Report from the Associate Director, Advancement - B. Montenegrino

15. Other Business



NEW COLLEGE COUNCIL

Minutes of the meeting of Monday, April 7, 2025,
12:10 p.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Present: R. Gazzale, K. Huffman, A. Guerson, T. Seburn, L. McCormack-Smith, B. Russel], F.
Garrett, T. Walkland, D. Williamson, M. Prescott-Brown, R. Buiani, S. Doyle-Wood, N.

Siddiqui, D. Racelis, H. Si, W. Tran, M. Redden, C. Ramsaroop, Florentine Winkler
(NCRQ), Chloe Legel (NCRC), Nam Pham (NCSC), Natalia Yépez (NCSC)

Regrets: D. Chang, T. Seburn, K. Edmonds, E. Weisbaum

Introduction

K. Huffman gave the University of Toronto Land Acknowledgement.

Agenda

K. Huffman motioned to approve the agenda.
M. Redden seconded. The motion opened for discussion and voting.

The motion carried and the agenda was approved.

Minutes of the Meeting of March 6, 2025

B. Russell motioned to approve the minutes.
L. McCormack-Smith seconded.

The minutes were approved.

Business Arising from the Minutes

Buddhism, Psychology and Mental Health (BPMH) Special Committee Preliminary Report

The Preliminary Report may be found through this link here. You need to be logged into your
UTmail+ account to access it. Please let Winston Tran (nc.undergradadmin@utoronto.ca) know if
you are experiencing issues with opening the report as well as have questions or feedback about
the findings or forthcoming recommendations.

The Special Committee was formed, via a successful motion from the December 12, 2024 NCC
meeting, to review the events, documentation, and timelines as it pertains to the BPMH’s UTQAP
review that led to the recommendation to close the program.


https://indigenous.utoronto.ca/about/land-acknowledgement/
https://utoronto-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/winston_tran_utoronto_ca/ES69I3zq32lAuqqAO0fiyd8BJXJNP-KibTj6Y5c9P7Dngg?e=tA5xhm
mailto:nc.undergradadmin@utoronto.ca

M. Redden shared the key findings of the Preliminary Report:

Length of Process

According to a December 2023 analysis by Newman et al., the majority of recent UTQAP
Cyclical Program Reviews were concluded in 10 to 14 months. For BPMH, 40 months
elapsed between the completion of the Self-Study in January 2020 and the posting of the
Final Assessment Report and Implementation Plan (FARIP) in April 2023. Note: The first site
visit in April 2020 was cancelled due to COVID-19.

According UTQAP, “The Review Committee will normally submit one joint report to the
commissioning officer, within two months of the site visit” (p. 52). For BPMH, this report
was received 14 months after the virtual site visit and 31 months after the Self-Study was
completed. An additional 8 months elapsed between the report of the external reviewers
and FARIP being received. The report of the Working Group recommended by the Dean in
FARIP took an additional 7 months to receive.

At present, the VPAP Office has not received the Proposal required in the Development
stage of the Program Closure Protocol (UTQAP, p. 35).

Execution of goals outlined in FARIP

The Dean’s “Short-to-medium” goal for the Faculty of Arts & Science (A&S) was, “examine
opportunities to support the Program with the existing A&S faculty complement” (FARIP, p.
9). For “immediate-" goals, the timeframe given to complete actions is six months. For
“medium-*, the timeframe is one to two years (p. 16).

Assessing faculty interest was the responsibility of the Working Group, “The Dean's office
will work with New College to create a working group, with representatives from cognate
units (including the Department of Psychology and the Department for the Study of
Religion), to discuss the BPMH curriculum, and options for the sustainability of the
program, including enhanced connections with cognate units and the engagement of
continuing faculty” (p. 9).

The Program Director requested 0.49FTE of her appointment to be moved from the

Department for the Study of Religion to New College in 2021 and worked with former

Principal B. McElhinny to develop a list of continuing status faculty at A&S with suitable

expertise, which was submitted to the Principal in February 2023. It is unclear whether

these discussions were followed up on. In late 2023, additional resources were offered from
Emmanuel College to assist in sustaining the program (Newman et al. 2023). This may have been an
opportunity to meet the Dean’s “Medium-to-long” goal.

Qualification of External Reviewers

The Cyclical Program Review of BPMH was paired with the Department of Psychology who
chose the External Reviewers for their expertise to evaluate the larger department. How
and by whom these External Reviewers were approved to review the BPMH Program is
presently unclear to the Special Committee.

UTQAP Section 6.8.1 specifies that reviewers must be “qualified by discipline and


https://www.vpacademic.utoronto.ca/reviews-academic-plans/final-assessment-reports/#section_6
https://www.vpacademic.utoronto.ca/wp-content/uploads/2023/03/utqap-2023.pdf

experience to review the program” and represent “peer institutions offering high quality
programs in the field under review” (p. 50). The CVs of the two external reviewers do not
contain evidence of qualifications nor experience with the discipline of Contemplative
Science, nor does their report indicate expertise in this field.

This general issue was flagged under Recommendation 7 of the Summary of Auditors’
Report on the Scope of the University of Toronto’s Response to the Quality Assurance
Audit. In their response to the recommendation, the VPAP Office stated, “before approving
reviewer nominations, [our Office is] now emphasizing the importance of having the
appropriate range of reviewers to ensure appropriate coverage of disciplines (in some
cases this can be achieved by inviting more than the required number of reviewers)” (p. 8).

Effectiveness of site visit

The virtual site visit of the External Reviewers was completed in four hours, which did not
allow for a representative view of the Program. The reviewers spoke to three undergraduate
students, which represents less than 1% of the student body; two (of 10) Teaching
Assistants; four (of eight) faculty members; and the Program’s administrative staff.

Enrolment suspension

In November 2023 the Working Group recommended to the Dean that the BPMH Program
be terminated. Immediately thereafter, students were unable to enroll in the minor. The
suspension of enrollment was formally announced in December 2023 and officially began
on January 31, 2024.

Between 2012 and 2023, a total of 11 programs have been closed in A&S. Cited reasons
include lack of student interest and decline in number of students, with enrolment
suspension followed immediately by program closure (see Reports on Program Closures).
Unlike these 11 examples, the BPMH Program has been robustly popular and well-enrolled
for years. Program administration had been discussing expansion to a Major Program,
which was affirmed in the recommendations of the External Reviewers to expand course
offerings and rename the program to reflect its focus on Contemplative Science (p. 9).

The enrolment suspension initiated in 2023 is still in place at present, 17 months later;
circumventing the required Program Closure Protocols (UTQAP, pp. 35-37), by strangling

program numbers over time.

If the Program Closure Protocol has not been initiated, why does the BPMH Program
enrolment remain suspended?

M. Redden asked for initial responses and feedback to the Preliminary Report.
Florentine Winkler asked what type of next steps would arise from the BPMH Special Committee.

M. Redden replied that they will be bringing forth recommendations in future NCC meetings, as the
sharing of the report today is to get a sense of how the Council members feel about the Committee’s
findings.


https://oucqa.ca/wp-content/uploads/Toronto_Auditors-Summary-Report-on-One-year-Response_FINAL_web-6.pdf
https://oucqa.ca/wp-content/uploads/Toronto_Auditors-Summary-Report-on-One-year-Response_FINAL_web-6.pdf
https://oucqa.ca/wp-content/uploads/Toronto_Auditors-Summary-Report-on-One-year-Response_FINAL_web-6.pdf

F. Garrett added that the intention for sharing this information today is to also invite Council
members to provide input on what some of those recommendations may be. An example would be
the recommendation to implement more robust and standardized record keeping, as the Committee
needed to track down information from 2019, which spanned the personal email inboxes of four
Program Directors, three Principals, and three Vice Principals. F. Garrett observed that the lack of
record keeping amongst the changes in staff and faculty have directly contributed to the
misrepresentation of the BPMH program.

R. Gazzale shared that steps have been taken to begin standardizing record keeping at the College,
especially via email, through the creation of shared inboxes that are tied to a position rather than
the individual. Examples of this are A. Guerson creating the nc.viceprincipal@utoronto.ca email
address for official business pertaining to the New College Vice Principal position, and R. Gazzale
creating the office.nc.principal@utoronto.ca email address to better separate general matters of the
New College Principal’s Office from sensitive information to which only the New College Principal
should be privy.

F. Garrett shared that another category of recommendation may be communication pertaining to
the program. Even though the program has been suspended for 17 months at this point, they still
receive frequent emails from students lamenting the suspension and asking for updates.

K. Huffman added it would be helpful to communicate to students the governance process and the
extent to which we as a College have power over programs, which is quite minimal. It would also be
prudent to provide clarity about program governance, such as major and minor modifications as
well as the subcommittees in which those proposals are put forward.

F. Garrett emphasized that students and contingent faculty are the people who fall through the
cracks when communication breaks down.

R. Gazzale asked if there are precedents to initiate a rereview of the UTQAP or if there are any
procedures already in place, such as a petition process, to do so.

L. McCormack-Smith responded that investigating the possibility of a rereview is one part of the
process, but the other is determining that the initial review was conducted properly, as because of
the length of time since the review and number of administrators in between, it is uncertain if some
of the decisions involved with the UTQAP, such as the selection of external reviewers, received
formal approval from the College and its governance channels.

F. Garrett added that the previous New College Principals and Vice-Principals neither have records
nor recollect any information as it pertains to the external reviewers.

C. Ramsaroop asked if there have been any avenues established to allow students as well as faculty
in precarious positions because of the program suspension to talk about the implications of this on
their livelihoods.

K. Huffman shared that the BPMH Special Committee has a student from the BPMH student union
(BPSU) participating in it as a representative. As for the consultation process with stakeholders
wherein issues may be raised, this starts when the program closure process begins and is one of the


mailto:nc.viceprincipal@utoronto.ca
mailto:office.nc.principal@utoronto.ca

points of investigation for the committee. Currently, we are operating in the in between stage
between enrolment suspension and a potential program closure.

C. Ramsaroop asked to clarify if the process of the BPMH UTQAP review was a discrepancy
compared to other reviews.

M. Redden added that there is not enough information to determine conclusively as there have been
issues with record keeping and retrieving data, but at the minimum, the time allotted towards the
review and timeframe between reports was unusual compared to other UTQAP reviews.

Report from Student Councils

NCSC - N. Siddiqui

General Updates
e Recently held Graduate Formal on March 29t and had around 200 participants.
e Two final events for the school year:
o Puppy yoga on April 10t
o Escape room exam de-stressor on April 19t
e Spring elections concluded
o New members were ratified April 4th and there were no grievances reported.
e Introduction of new executive members for next session.
o Nam Pham will be the President and Natalia Yépez will be the Vice-President,
Student Life.

NCRC - Florentine Winkler:
General Updates

e Elections occurred and concluded successfully back in March.
e Currently in the process of administrative handover to next session’s executive members.
o Met with the Assistant Director and Head Chef of Food Services on April 4th to discuss their
shift to the all you care to eat plan for the New College dining hall.
o The minutes of this meeting have been distributed to the Dining Committee.
o The coming session will be a trial year for the new meal plan as well as the new
NCRC constitution, which allows the Directors to be more independent.
e Events
o Puppy yoga today, April 7t
o March Madness event, April 5t
o Supporting ORSL with their pop up.

L. McCormack-Smith added that there is not yet finalized language in place to communicate the
dining hall changes, but it will be done in a timely manner so any upper year returner applicants to
the residence receives a brief before and have about two weeks before they make the decision to
put their deposits down.



Course Unions:

None in attendance.

Report from Standing Committees

Academic Affairs - A. Guerson:

From the meeting of March 31, 2025
A. Guerson reported back from the last Undergraduate Curriculum Meeting of the year.

o Implementing a final round of changes to touch up the list of electives for the Critical
Studies in Equity and Solidarity program.

o These courses were suggested to us when we consulted other academic units on
adding their courses. They were brand new courses that were created in the most
recent round of curriculum meetings.

Arts and Science Council on March 19, 2025

o Questions were raised during the Dean’s Report regarding the report here from the
Canadian Association of University Teachers (CAUT) pertaining to the recent threats
made by the new American administration to academic research done in Canada:
https://www.caut.ca/news/trump-administration-threatening-canadian-

researchers/

Belize Trip

If the research has any funding from American agencies, Canadian
researchers are asked to answer a questionnaire to confirm that their
research is not affiliated with a climate or environmental justice component,
does not have Diversity, Equity, and Inclusivity (DEI) elements, and does not
ascribe to “gender ideology”. The research also must increase American
influence globally.
e Some of these requirements contradict Canadian legislation. For
example, Canadian funding agencies require that research speak to
DEI and U of T has a whole office dedicated to helping its researchers
ensure they are compliant.
Melanie Woodin shared the Vice-Dean of Research and other members of
the University’s leadership are working on mitigating risk involving
research considering these requests.
e (Concerns were also raised related to travel to the US and she advised
individuals to consider advisories from the Canadian government
but to also register with International SOS, to which U of T
subscribes.

o Concerns were raised regarding the students going on the trip to Belize since the
flight connects in the US. We are consulting with June Larkin and the Centre for
International Experience on this issue.

Call for Senior Doctoral Fellowships

o Ihave been working with R. Gazzale and the Program Directors on the call for the
Senior Doctoral Fellowship, which we want to send out as soon as possible rather
than waiting until the summer.


https://www.caut.ca/news/trump-administration-threatening-canadian-researchers/
https://www.caut.ca/news/trump-administration-threatening-canadian-researchers/
https://www.caut.ca/news/trump-administration-threatening-canadian-researchers/

= We are updating the call so that each program can specify what they are
looking for, but we are also creating a form for submitting applications so
that the process can be easier to manage administratively.

o An abbreviated callout will be distributed as soon as it becomes available. The
deadline is May 15, 2025.

Kathleen O'Connell Award

o We had alonger discussion about the Kathleen O'Connell Award. This is a teaching
award that until this year included only CUPE 3902 Unit 3 instructors — sessional
lecturers and writing instructors.

= We now also have a Unit 6 at the college, which are our IFP instructors. It
seemed fair that they should also be eligible for this award, so we expanded
the eligibility to them.

* In our Academic Affairs meeting, A. McGuire brought forward the very valid
point that we have very talented Unit 1 course instructors and TAs at the
college that are not fully recognized for their work. While in principle they
are eligible to be nominated to the CTSI awards, the chances of even making
a shortlist for those awards are very small since the eligible pool is in the
thousands. Meanwhile, with African Studies and Caribbean Studies
becoming independent, our pool of eligible instructors has shrunk.

* Even just being nominated for an award is already an honour that can be
added to a CV, and after consideration and discussions with R. Gazzale, we
will expand the O'Connell award to include all our sessional instructors,
whether they are Unit 1, 3, or 6 and our TAs. This may make it easier for
students to know whether someone is eligible or not to be nominated since
the difference between these units is not obvious to students.

e [ am informed that since this is not an official Award record, we do
not need to get NCC approval for this change, but I thought [ would
report it here for the minutes and for information.

= We are finalizing a form for nomination, and a reminder will be sent out,
hopefully next week.

New College Writing Centre Subcommittee

o The subcommittee shared our Terms of Reference with Academic Affairs and the
goal is to take stock of all the amazing services our Writing Centre provides to a
wide variety of students as well as the rationale for such offers.

o We have had a few meetings, during which we wrote an outline of the report and
discussed what data sets we had for each part of the report. During our second
meeting, when we finalized this outline, it became obvious that for this to be an
effective report, we needed time and we discussed with R. Gazzale, K. Huffman, and
Academic Affairs that the committee wanted to use all the time available until the
end of the Council’s term on June 30t rather than rush a less comprehensive report
for this meeting. NCC can probably expect to see the report when we reconvene in
the Fall.

Policy changes passed at the Arts and Science Council on February 12:

o Post-Admission Transfer Credits

= One of the ways students can transfer credits they took outside the faculty is
by taking courses and then, upon course completion, applying to get those
credits transferred back. This is the post-admission transfer credit. There



have been issues with students taking courses in other institutions and later
these credits not being approved.
*  Going forward, the faculty will require students to get a letter of permission
before they take courses elsewhere.
= The letter of permission system already exists and previously it was applied
only to universities within Canada. Now it will extend to all cases.
o 12.0 Distinct Credit Requirement
= The requirement did not previously foresee the possibility of students
taking two majors and a minor. Previously the conflicting program
assessment was done only across the two majors; now it will include all
three programs.
o Repeating Passed Courses
= Students could repeat courses to raise their marks for reason of program
admission but there was a limit of 1 FCE for repeating courses for other
reasons. They removed that distinction.

C. Ramsaroop asked if it would be possible for a direct flight to Belize rather than connecting in the
Us.

S. Doyle-Wood shared an anecdote from a previous Belize trip, wherein they had difficulty with the
staff at the US border as they had no knowledge or understanding of Permanent Residency. Other
issues include a student, who was an American citizen, needing to stay overnight because they were
required to go through a different terminal than communicated. There were also instances wherein
students could not travel because the US did not recognize their citizenship. They also added they
had asked if a direct flight to Belize would be possible two years ago and at the time was told that
direct routes are only available during certain times in the year.

C. Ramsaroop asked what is the obligation that the University has to students and faculty if they
were to get detained.

C. Ramsaroop noted that they have been seeing an increase in students saying they need to miss
class due to a test in another course and asked what the standard procedure, with respect to
academic considerations, would be in these cases.

A. Guerson responded that this was an issue noted in a previous Academic Affairs meeting as other
instructors have been observing this as well. The causes of this seem to be various, ranging from
students enrolling themselves into conflicts, which they are not supposed to do but ACORN allows,
to instructors scheduling term tests for courses outside of their normal delivery time. A. Guerson
connected with Don Boyes, Associate Dean, Teaching and Learning, about the former case, who
shared that instructors are perfectly within their right to maybe not be as accommodating to
students with enrolment conflicts as we do not want to encourage this.

R. Gazzale added that instructors have no obligation to provide academic considerations to
students with enrolment conflicts. This also applies to cases wherein another instructor decides to
implement an out of delivery time assessment, as they are the ones that are required to
accommodate the student in this scenario as per the Arts and Science Instructor Handbook.



10

Florentine Winkler shared that, from the student experience, the responsibility of managing their
own courses and administration is sometimes newer to some people than others, and there is a
substantial number of students who do not consider that as an important aspect of the academic
process. These students will just rush to their College Registrar’s offices as a result whenever things
go wrong. As well, and it especially being the case for larger, mainstream courses, students will
shop around for both courses and instructors to determine what teaching style suits them best. At
the end of the day, a lot of students feel like managing courses is another thing to organize that
takes up their capacity.

Nam Pham provided the Education and Society Minor that is administered by Innis College as an
example of how inflexible some programs may be and how this may lead to scheduling conflicts.
The program has many mandatory courses that only offer one section, and if this happens to be
conflicting with an hour or so of another required course for your other programs, then you may
not have much choice but to enroll in a conflict.

W. Tran added that this issue should not be as prevalent starting next Fall/Winter session as the
Faculty of Arts and Science (FAS) implements the Scheduling Principles, which are a set of best
practices for rooming and timing courses so they minimize student conflicts. In particular, the FAS
will be attempting to standardize start and end times of courses to reduce the chance of one course
running into the delivery time of another.

Report from the Principal - R. Gazzale
e Event highlights from around the College.
o New One Knowledge Fest on April 3, 2025.

e [twas incredible to see the variety of student projects, ranging from a
scientific poster to a collaborative piece of artwork.

e Students were clearly very engaged and immersed in their work throughout
the term.

o New College Award Ceremony.

o The recognition awards were a nice touch as it was thrilling to see so many
of the community members’ contributions recognized, such as students,
student leaders, cafeteria staff, and so on.

e Held at the Faculty Club.

o New College won the annual mac and cheese competition for the second year in a
row with a Korean-inspired entry.

o Stanley Doyle-Wood's art opening tomorrow, April 8, 2025, at the Transition Year
Program.

e We will work out how to get the art moved to New College.
e New initiatives for the Summer

o Adhoc task force to look at how we can prepare our students to use generative Al
effectively and ethically.

e Will consist of representatives from the Writing Centre, IFP, the Library, and
so on.

o Community Engaged Learning (CEL) discussions with Human Biology (HMB)

e K. Edmonds has done a great job of expanding the CEL program after the

pandemic.



11

o Further conversations will be held to determine how CEL can support the
academic programs at the College but also how it can appeal to New College
students who may not necessarily be enrolled in our programs.

o HMB and Franco Taverna are leading figures at the University with respect
to CEL.

o Dean Melanie Woodin will be the 17t President of the University of Toronto

o  Will be the first female President at the University of Toronto as well as the
first female President of a major Canadian university.

e As such, she will be stepping away from her position as the Dean of the
Faculty of Arts and Science to which New College directly reports.

e Melanie Woodin has been very supportive of the College system and
maintained that Colleges should not just be residence halls but
should have an academic life.

e Ahead of the search for a new Dean, R. Gazzale has spoken with the
Principals of other Colleges, who all agree about the importance of
having a Dean who appreciates the academic life at Colleges as well.

Report from the Vice-Principal - A. Guerson
e New One had a successful Knowledge Fair on April 3, 2025
o Part of the fair this year was the unveiling of urban pictograms at the Library.
o More information on this can be found here as well as via QR codes at the library,
which will lead to the website.

o Timetable submitted on time - thank you to all the Program Directors who sent in their
timetables on time and thanks to W. Tran for his amazing work in handling new procedures
and policies around the timing of courses, which required us to take a close look at our
schedules.

o We are now preparing to finalize courses and getting ready for final marks
submission but also hiring for the summer courses.

Report from the Writing Centre — M. Prescott-Brown
e Presented a report providing an overview of the New College Writing Centre’s year,
including its events, new initiatives, a year-to-year comparison of service provision
numbers, and future growth plans.
e The full presentation can be found here.

Report from the Librarian - M. Redden

e Seven students have joined the library team as Night Stewards to staff the 24-hour study
space, which begins tonight, April 7th, and continues until April 30th.

o The building doors and lower-level library doors will lock at 9 PM and students will
be required to show their TCards to use the space.

e Asusual, the library will close for cleaning on 5PM Fridays and reopen Saturdays at 9 AM.
One exception is the holiday closure on April 18th when the library will close at 9 AM and
reopen at 9 AM the following day. The library closes April 30t at 5 PM and will reopen for
summer hours, Mondays to Thursday 9 AM - 5 PM, beginning May 5t



https://www.newcollege.utoronto.ca/new-one-urban-pictograms/
https://onedrive.live.com/personal/aed6cd6dff6a95ab/_layouts/15/Doc.aspx?sourcedoc=%7B47da4de1-b44d-4e88-b2ee-955cdf3093a2%7D&action=default&redeem=aHR0cHM6Ly8xZHJ2Lm1zL3AvYy9hZWQ2Y2Q2ZGZmNmE5NWFiL0VlRk4ya2ROdEloT3N1NlZYTjh3azZJQnczUmhEeExmeE1BbVMyYWRIMnQxWnc_ZT1MRlBzZHM&slrid=1125c6a1-10a9-a000-1de7-8cd9750bf71b&originalPath=aHR0cHM6Ly8xZHJ2Lm1zL3AvYy9hZWQ2Y2Q2ZGZmNmE5NWFiL0VlRk4ya2ROdEloT3N1NlZYTjh3azZJQnczUmhEeExmeE1BbVMyYWRIMnQxWnc_cnRpbWU9QzJRNmdNRDAzVWc&CID=8ccfe520-0a9d-4af3-b794-8d3397583eec&_SRM=0%3AG%3A57&file=Writing%20Centre%20Report%20(2024-2025)%20(1).pptx

12

Report from the Office of the Registrar — K. Huffman
e New College Awards Reception on March 27, 2025.

o Incredibly successful event. Thanked Lesley Mak, Brenda Registe, and Alana
Rodrigues Magalhaes for bringing everything together.

o The choice of the Faculty Club as a venue was well received and attended.

o Werecorded the highest number of donors that have ever attended an Award
Reception, and so many had the opportunity to meet the students who have
benefited from their generosity.

e Admissions and new students

o Two rounds of admissions have been done for students joining in the Fall.

o Welcome event on May 31, 2025.

o The Summer will be full of transition in activities for students.

e Presented a snapshot of the New College Registrar’s Office’s activities over the past session,
which can be viewed here.

o New College is now the largest College at FAS, with our undergraduate population
being a little over 6400 students.

o Surveys show 85% of students at the College have at least one interaction with the
Registrar’s Office on an annual basis.

o Additional notes with respect to the snapshot

= The one-on-one advising appointments are 30 minutes long.

= The bulk of petitions submitted are deferred exam petitions (green bar).
Withdrawals without academic penalty (blue bar), term work extensions
(yellow bar), and other miscellaneous petitions (dark green) make up the
rest of the total. These petitions can be several things, such as a lift of
suspension, early return from suspension, or late credit no credit.

e All petitions are reviewed by one of the academic advisors, and a
recommendation to grant or not is put forward by that advisor
before it goes to FAS.

= Course enrolment sessions for new incoming students are held in the
summer to help them learn how to use ACORN, how to course enroll and
create a timetable, and so on.

¢ The number of attendees almost tripled over previous years.

= Late Withdrawal (LWD) requests.

e This is not an automatic process. These requests are initially
reviewed by the Student Service Assistants. Requests from students
with complex academic records are referred to an academic advisor.

= Most students graduate in the June convocation ceremony, with only about
150 graduating in November.

e The percentage of students who attend with family members is one
of the highest amongst all Colleges.

F. Garrett asked if there was information on which countries new students are applying from.

K. Huffman replied that we are seeing some of the international student numbers soften a bit, but
we are not concerned as the sense is the FAS will meet their target numbers overall. K. Huffman
noted US applications increased 16% from the previous year.


https://utoronto-my.sharepoint.com/:p:/g/personal/winston_tran_utoronto_ca/EQTi-jH0FStBnVRaqocb6fgBqrzBgEWxDf96QrXLznN4mA?e=JgAEr1

13

R. Gazzale corroborated this, sharing that the majority of the uptick in US applications coming later
in the admission cycle.

K. Huffman observed the previous year that the number of domestic students from southern
Ontario increased a little while numbers from out of province students decreased a little. This may
be the case again this year and as parents may be electing to keep students in the area for economic
reasons. K. Huffman also noted that the number of students applying in the social science stream
has decreased a little, while the life science applicants have bounced back a bit. FAS still sees
extremely strong numbers in the math and physical sciences areas.

C. Ramsaroop asked if there is any data about international students whose visas have been denied.

K. Huffman shared that there is not at the moment as it is difficult to get other than anecdotally
through the Residence Office and the Registrar’s Office during the Summer, especially as the start of
the Fall term approaches. Last year, there seemed to be a slowdown in processing for certain places.

C. Ramsaroop asked why there were less grants given than scholarships, because historically it was
the other way around.

K. Huffman replied that the proportion of grants versus scholarships given is very dependent on the
student population. In recent years, the population shifted at the College, the percentage of students
who fall under what would be considered the financial need category has been reduced quite
dramatically. The current international student population is about 44%, with the assumption
being that they have funding in place to cover their years of study, and so they are not typically
eligible for financial aid. However, there are still provisions to provide financial aid to international
students in place, such as if a laptop is stolen or an urgent trip home to see a sick relative is
required, or even to cover some nominal costs on a case-by-case basis. K. Huffman estimates, if the
records were reviewed, that the actual number of students who are receiving OSAP or other
student loans would slightly decrease. These loans indicate that the population has demonstrated
financial need, which is required when submitting a grant application. However, there was an
increase in the number of students applying for grants this year, as it is the first time we have used
all of the allocation we have been given for several years. This may be reflective of the increasing
costs of housing and food as these are the most common reasons for applying.

R. Gazzale encouraged staff and faculty members to attend the June 16t morning and afternoon
graduation ceremonies.

Report from the Office of Residence and Student Life — L. McCormack-Smith
¢ Housing Meeting
o The first meeting was held, and housing guarantee numbers have been determined.

* The good news is the numbers have decreased a bit and so, with Oak House
slated for opening, we may be in a position to not have any additional
residences open. This includes the fact that the contract with the Ivy Hotel,
which is an apartment-style residence, was for two years and so will still be
part of the operational suite for at least one additional year.

=  We should be able to respond to our waiting lists in late July, early August.




14

e The past years, we were still working with the waiting lists in

September and October.
= This also means that we should have more spaces to hopefully support
upper year students who are not in the returner pool.

e The decision was made to consider returning applicants any New
College student who is currently in a residence somewhere across
campus. This includes Campus One and the additional residences.

e We were the only residence last year who did not send anybody to
additional residences and were able to make offers to all of the
students who had selected New College and were New College
students by mid-June.

o We are once again sending early round offers on May 15,
which we have observed has been helpful for international
students because it means they are confirming where they
are living prior to June, which allows them to expedite some
of the paperwork they need to complete.

e American College Personnel Association Assessment Institute
o There are several ORSL staff interested in attending, but are hesitant about flying
into Washington, DC. As such, L. McCormack-Smith will work with some subject
matter experts in Canada to see if training can be provided here, specifically for New
College staff.
=  We will be meeting with them on the 14t to discuss what it is they can offer
as well as costs. Once this information is received, we will email the various
departments at New College to gauge interest.
o Assessment refers to program assessment, which involves surveying students based
on services we provide as well as what they wish to see implemented.
e Summer Sock Knitting Group
o Due to popular demand, L. McCormack-Smith will be putting together a knitting
group during the Summer for New College staff. Information will be circulated via
email.

Other Business
No other business was discussed.

Adjournment
B. Russell motioned to adjourn the meeting.

Seconded by A. Guerson. The motion opened for discussion and voting.

All in favour. Meeting adjourned at 1:52 PM.



